
OSAWATOMIE CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

April 12, 2018 
6:30 p.m., Memorial Hall 

 

 

 
1. Call to order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Invocation  
5. Consent Agenda 

Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council member requests 
an item be removed for discussion and separate action. 

A. April 12 Agenda 
B. Council Minutes for March 22, 2018 
C. Pay Application #1 – Legacy Contractors – City Hall Renovation – $64,139.00 
D. Pay Application #1 – Kansas Heavy Const. – Phase II Main Street – $327,995.46 
E. Pay Applications #4 – MTS – Auditorium Façade – $49,700.00 
F. Pay Applications #5 – MTS – Auditorium Façade – $33,300.00 
G. Pay Application – JEO – Electric Generation Project Engineering – $4,677.50 

6. Comments from the Public  
Citizen participation will be limited to 5 minutes.  Stand & be recognized by the Mayor.  

7. Presentations & Proclamations 
A. Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation 
B. Oath of Office – Police Corporal’s Ed Beaudry and John Mann 
C. Oath of Office – K-9 Unit Christopher White and Thor 

8. Public Hearings 
9. Unfinished Business 

A. Ordinance – Codification 
10. New Business 

A. Resolution – Contingency Contract for Property Sale 
B. Appointment – Library Board 
C. Capacity Sales Agreement 
D. Bids for New Electric Shop Building 
E. Proposal for Parker from 8th to Park 
F. East Lake Road Chip Seal 
G. Draft of Sales Tax Ballot Question 

11. Council Report 
12. Mayor’s Report  
13. City Manager & Staff Reports 
14. Executive Session  
15. Other Discussion/Motions 
16. Adjourn 

 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING – April 26, 2018 



 

 

Osawatomie, Kansas. March 22, 2018.  The Council Meeting was held in Memorial 
Hall. Mayor Govea called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Council members present were 
Dickinson, Diehm, Hampson, LaDuex, Macek, Maichel, Walmann and Wright.  City Staff 
present at the meeting were: City Attorney Dick Wetzler, City Clerk Tammy Seamands, City 
Manager Don Cawby, Public Works Director Blake Madden, Chief of Police Dave Ellis and 
Chief Water/ Power Plant Operator Stewart Kasper.  Members of the public were Grady Atwater, 
Hitomi Warren with the Osawatomie Chamber of Commerce and David Arteberry with George 
K. Baum.  
 
 INVOCATION.    Grady Atwater, First Presbyterian Church 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA.   Approval of March 22nd Agenda, February 8th & February 22nd 
Minutes, 2018-01 & 2018-02 Register Reports, Pay Application #6 – IES Commercial Inc. – 9th 
Street Substation - $40995.09, Pay Application #1 – Baldridge Engineering – 9th Street 
Substation - $2,025.00, Pay Application – JEO Consulting Group – Electric Generation Project - 
$4,350.00 and Pay Application #1 – Edgecomb Flooring – City Hall Renovation - $8,500.00  
Motion made by LaDuex, seconded by Dickinson to Approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  
Yeas:  All.   
 
 COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC.   
 
 Grady Atwater spoke about the Presbyterian Church being very active in the community.  
Everything from being the center for the ministerial association that provides assistance for 
people in need, sponsoring clubs and having cookouts or being involved in community events. 
 
 PRESENTATIONS.  None. 
 
 PUBLIC HEARINGS.  None. 
 
 UNFINISHED BUSINESS.    
 
 LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT – FIRE TRUCK AND ENTERPRISE 
SOFTWARE.  David Arteberry with George K. Baum provided information to the council after 
closing the bids on March 2nd.  There were six (6) bids submitted, with the two (2) lowest being 
very close in rates.   Motion made by Walmann, seconded by Hampson to Authorize the 
Proposed Ordinance to Execute a Lease Purchase Agreement for the Acquisition of a Fully-
Equiped Fire Truck and Upgraded Software for City Systems.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 ORDINANCE – KWIKOM FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.  City Manager Cawby 
explained that we needed to adopt the franchise fee to allow them to use our right-of-way.   
Motion made by LaDuex, seconded by Dickinson to Approve the Proposed Ordinance to 
Authorize the Franchise Agreement with JMZ dba KwiKom.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 ORDINANCE – WATER CONSERVATION.  Stewart Kasper, Chief Water/Power Plant 
Operator, discussed the proposed draft of the water conservation plan.  The last plan that was 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 1



 

 

adopted was in 1995.    Motion made by LaDuex, seconded by Dickinson to Adopt the Proposed 
Ordinance to Implement a Water Conservation Program for the City of Osawatomie.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 RESOLUTION – WATER CONSERVATION PLAN.  Motion made by Dickinson, 
seconded by Walmann to Approve the Water Conservation Plan Resolution.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 NEW BUSINESS. 
 
 KMEA DIRECTOR APPOINTMENTS.  KMEA requires two (2) directors and one (1) 
alternate for their board.  Currently Director #1 is Don Cawby, Director #2 is Stewart Kasper and 
the Alternate is Mark Govea.   Motion made by Hampson, seconded by LaDuex to Approve to 
Continue the Positions as they are.  Yeas:  All.  
 
 VACUUM TRAILER. Blake Madden, Director of Public Works and Utilities, explained 
that the CIP allows for a vacuum excavation trailer.  We received two (2) quotes from Ditch 
Witch and Vermeer dealers.  Madden recommends the Vermeer as it has greater air flow and 
water pump pressure.  Motion made by LaDuex, seconded by Walmann to Approve the 
Purchase of the Vac-Tron CV 573SGT for $40,000 from Vermeer.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 RESOLUTION – SUPPORT FOR US HIGHWAY 169 CORRIDOR COALITION.  
Cawby explained that we were asked to support a resolution for the us highway 169 corridor 
coalition.  Motion made by Hampson, seconded by Diehm to Approve the Resolution to Support 
the US Highway 169 Corridor Coalition.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 RESOLUTION – SUPPORT FOR OSAWATOMIE STATE HOSPITAL.  Cawby 
explained the resolution of support for the Osawatomie State Hospital.  Motion made by 
LaDuex, seconded by Hampson to Approve the Support for Osawatomie State Hospital 
Resolution.  Yeas:  All. 

 
APPOINTMENT OF OFFICIAL MPR REPRESENTATIVE.  Motion made by LaDuex, 

seconded by Hampson to Appoint Tammy Seamands, City Clerk, as the Official MPR 
Representative.  Yeas:  All. 
 
 COUNCIL REPORTS.   
 
 Lawrence Dickinson ~ KwiKom was on the water tower today.  Main street looks like it 
is coming along. 
 
 Kenny Diehm ~ Reminder that the picnic tables in the park are broken.  He asked if we 
could look at changing some of our fireworks regulations. 
 
 Tamara Maichel ~ Possibly having speakers at the meeting, so that it is easier to hear at 
the meetings.  Mentioned that County Commissioner, Ron Stiles, son passed away. 
 
 Karen LaDuex ~ Asked if we prohibit fireworks being shot off during our fireworks 
display.    

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 2



 

 

 
 MAYOR’S REPORT.   
  
 He wanted to commend Thor, our K-9, for doing a good job this week.  Kansas 
Children’s Service League contacted him to adopt a proclamation next month. 
 
   
 CITY MANAGER & STAFF REPORTS.  
 
 Staff Reports 
 

Dave Ellis provided the police department monthly report.  Commended Thor for 
a good job. 

 
Blake Madden provided an update on the main street project and additional 

projects. 
 
 City Manager Report 
 

Provided an update on the auditorium entrance and the city hall renovation.  Will 
be putting together an announcement that we will be moving offices.   

 
We have hired a new clubhouse manager at the golf course, Grant Kater. 
 
We have hired a new utility clerk, Kim Coffelt. 

 
 EXECUTIVE SESSION.   None. 
 
 OTHER DISCUSSION/MOTIONS. 
  
 Motion made by Maichel, seconded by Hampson to adjourn. Yeas:  All.  Mayor declared 
the meeting adjourned at 7:41 p.m. 
 
 
                    /s/ Ashley Kobe                       
         Ashley Kobe, Deputy City Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 3



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 4



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 5



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 6



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 7



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 8



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 9



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 10



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 11



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 12



 

 
  
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
ISSUED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 WHEREAS, children are key to the state’s future success, prosperity and quality of life 
and, while children are our most valuable resource, they are also our most vulnerable, and 
 
 WHEREAS, children have a right to be safe and to be provided an opportunity to 
thrive, learn and grow, and 
 
 WHEREAS, child abuse an neglect can be prevented by supporting and strengthening 
Kansas’ families, thus preventing the far-reaching effects of maltreatment, providing the 
opportunity for children to develop healthy, trusting family bonds; and consequently, building 
the foundations of communities, and 
 
 WHEREAS, we must come together as partners so that the voices of our children are 
heard by all and we are as a community extending a helping hand to children and families in 
need, and 
 

WHEREAS, by providing safe, stable and nurturing relationships for our children, free 
of violence, abuse and neglect, we can ensure that Kansas’ children will grow to their full 
potential as the next generation of leaders, helping to secure the future of this state and nation, 
and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, L. Mark Govea, Mayor of the City of Osawatomie, do hereby 
proclaim 

April, 2018 

Child Abuse Prevention Month 

in the City of Osawatomie. 
 
  

Proclaimed this 12th day of April, 2018.  
            

      
             
       ____________________________ 
        L. Mark Govea, Mayor 

City of Osawatomie 
 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 13



 

2018-04-12 SAM Codification.docx 

 

 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 12, 2017 

AGENDA ITEM: Codification 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   For almost 3 years, we have been working on getting our ordinances re-codified.  

Traditionally this meant that a City takes all of its ordinances passed since the code was last passed and 

add in those ordinances to a new, updated code.  However, with the advent of the internet the 

codification process has become less complicated.  With CityCode, we will be able to pass an ordinance 

on Thursday, and by the time it is published in the paper on the following Wednesday, the online code 

will be updated to include the new ordinance.  This allows staff, from the police officer to the municipal 

judge, to have a current, up-to-date copy of the code.  It eliminates confusion on the part of the public 

and also makes sure that all new ordinances don’t accidentally overwrite a recently passed ordinance 

that has yet to be codified. 

In this codification any changes to the current code were made because of one of the following reasons: 

1. An ordinance has been passed since 2010 and need to be incorporated into the code. 
2. A portion of the code was dropped in the 2008 codification, most likely inadvertently, and has 

been added back in where necessary (e.g., littering). 
3. Sections were deleted that are no longer applicable or have been super-ceded by the state, (e.g. 

gun laws). 
4. Updating administrative portions of the code to represent how things actually occur in City 

operations (e.g. Planning Commission, blanket bonding). 
5. Clarifying confusing language or sections. 

We made every effort to not include any new policy or provisions which didn’t previously exist in a 

previous codification or ordinance. 

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and discuss.  Consider the proposed ordinance to adopt the 

codification.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve a motion to adopt the proposed ordinance which 

codifies the ordinances of the City of Osawatomie. 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 14



 

 

(Published in the Miami County Republic on April 18, 2018) 

ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE CODIFICATION OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS, PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL 
OF CERTAIN OTHER ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED THEREIN, 
EXCEPTING CERTAIN ORDINANCES FROM REPEAL AND SAVING 
CERTAIN ACCRUED RIGHTS AND LIABILITIES. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS: 

 
SECTION 1. Adoption of the Code of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas. The codification 

of ordinances of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas, prepared by Citycode Financial LLC, Wichita, 
Kansas, as set out in the following chapters, Chapters I to XVI and Appendices A and B, all 
inclusive, and entitled the “Code of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas,” is hereby authorized, 
adopted and ordained as the “Code of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas.” The Code is authorized 
by ordinance and was made in conformity with K.S.A. 12-3014 and 12-3015 and amendments 
thereto. Said code shall be duly certified by the City Clerk. One copy of the code shall be filed in 
the office of the City Clerk and shall be designated as and shall constitute the official ordinance 
book. Three additional copies shall be filed in the office of the city clerk and shall be designated 
for use by the public. 

 
SECTION 2. Repeal of general ordinances. All ordinances and parts of ordinances of a 

general nature passed prior to April 12, 2018, are hereby repealed as of the date of publication of 
said code except as hereinafter provided. 

SECTION 3. Same; excepting certain ordinances from repeal. 

In construing this ordinance, the following ordinances shall not be considered or held to be 
ordinances of a general nature:  

(a) Ordinances pertaining to the acquisition of property or interests in property by gift, 
purchase, devise, bequest, appropriation or condemnation;  

(b) Ordinances opening, dedicating, widening, vacating or narrowing streets, avenues, 
alleys and boulevards;  

(c) Ordinances establishing and changing grades of streets, avenues, alleys and boulevards;  

(d) Ordinances naming or changing the names of streets, avenues and boulevards;  

(e) Ordinances authorizing or directing public improvements to be made;  

(f) Ordinances creating districts for public improvements of whatsoever kind or nature;  

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 15



 

 

(g) Ordinances levying general taxes;  

(h) Ordinances levying special assessments or taxes;  

(i) Ordinances granting any rights, privileges, easements or franchises therein mentioned to 
any person, firm or corporation;  

(j) Ordinances authorizing the issuance of bonds and other instruments of indebtedness by 
the city;  

(k) Ordinances authorizing contracts;  

(l) Ordinances establishing the limits of the city or pertaining to annexation or exclusion of 
territory;  

(m) Ordinances relating to compensation of officials, officers and employees of the city;  

(n) All charter ordinances; 

(o) Any appropriation ordinance or ordinances relating to a specific transfer of funds; 

(p) Any zoning ordinance or ordinances changing the zoning classification of any property 
within the city or amending the city’s zoning map; 

(q) Ordinances of a temporary nature; 

(r) Any ordinance which is special, although permanent in effect; 

(s) Any ordinance, the purpose of which has not been accomplished. 

Provided, that the above enumeration of exceptions shall not be held or deemed to be 
exclusive, it being the purpose and intention to exempt from repeal any and all ordinances not of 
a general nature and general ordinances specifically excepted by this section. Ordinances which 
are not of a general nature shall be numbered consecutively, approved by the governing body, 
published, and filed with the city clerk, but such ordinances shall not be prepared for insertion in 
this code, nor be deemed a part hereof.  

SECTION 4. Arrangement of and notations throughout the code. The arrangement and 
classification of the several chapters, articles, and sections of the code adopted by section 1 of 
this ordinance and the headnotes and footnotes at the ends of the sections, are made for the 
purpose of convenience and orderly arrangement, and do not constitute a part of the ordinances, 
and therefore, no implication or presumption of legislative intent or construction is to be drawn 
therefrom.  

SECTION 5. Accrued rights and liabilities. The repeal of ordinances as provided in 
section 2 hereof, shall not affect any rights acquired, fines, penalties, forfeitures or liabilities 
incurred thereunder, or actions involving any of the provisions of said ordinances or parts 
thereof. Said ordinances above repealed are hereby continued in force and effect after the 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 16



 

 

passage, approval and publication of this ordinance for the purpose of such rights, fines, 
penalties, forfeitures, liabilities and actions therefor.  

SECTION 6. Severability. If for any reason any chapter, article, section, subsection, 
sentence, portion or part of the "Code of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas," or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstances is declared to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision 
will not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this code.  

SECTION 7. Effective date. This ordinance shall be published in the official city 
newspaper and shall take effect and be in force from and after the publication of the “Code of the 
City of Osawatomie, Kansas” as provided in K.S.A. 12-3015.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the governing body of the City of Osawatomie, 
Kansas on April 12, 2018. 

 
      CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 
 

 

 [Seal] 

By        

    L. Mark Govea, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By       

    Tammy Seamands, City Clerk 

 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 17



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF THE CITY CLERK 

 
State of Kansas )  
   )  
Miami County )  

I, Tammy Seamands, City Clerk of the City of Osawatomie, Miami County, Kansas do 
hereby certify that said city is a city of the second class of the mayor-council-manager form of 
government under the statutes of Kansas; that this codification of the general ordinances of said 
city and the publication thereof in book form were ordered and authorized by the governing body 
by ordinance and in accordance therewith is entitled the “Code of the City of Osawatomie, 
Kansas,” that said codification was adopted as the “Code of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas,” by 
the governing body by Ordinance No. ___ passed on April 12, 2018, as authorized by K.S.A. 12-
3015; that said ordinance and said codification of general ordinances as contained in this volume 
will take effect upon publication of 4 or more copies in book form; that the publication of 4 
copies of this code in book form and said adoptive ordinance constitute due passage of this code 
and all general ordinances contained therein; that the codification and said adoptive ordinance as 
contained herein are true and correct copies; and that said publication imports absolute verity and 
is to be received in evidence in all courts and places without further proof as provided by K.S.A. 
12-3015. 

I further certify that the "Code of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas," and the matter therein 
contained will take effect and be in force from and after April 18, 2018 (date of publication of 
the codification ordinance in the newspaper).  
 
 
 
 
 

       
TAMMY SEAMANDS, City Clerk  

 

DATE: ____________ _____, 2018. 
 
 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 18



 

2018-04-12 SAM Northland Contract.docx 

 

 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: Contingent Property Sale 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   For the last 2 years, a developer has submitted a proposal for the use of the 10 acres 

property for a senior housing tax credit project.  The application is to the Kansas Housing Resources 

Corporation in January and then announcements are made in May. 

This year’s applicant, Dean Development, was notified that KHRC was not inclined to approve a project 

on the 10 acres site.  However, they did say that Osawatomie had a good track record with this type of 

project and they suggested they identify another site.  After looking at a couple of other opportunities 

but finding unwilling sellers or extremely high prices, Dean Development’s realtor reached out to me 

about the Northland property.  In order to meet utility requirements, I suggested the property directly 

north of the OSH homes on Osawatomie Road because utilities are there, but access to them will have 

to be negotiated (OSH, RWD #1).   

After looking at the property, they would like to get the property under a contingent contract for $90,000 

so that they can amend their KHRC tax credit submission.  While that is being considered, the City would 

begin to talk with KDADS and Miami Co. RWD #1 about service to the property.  The complete 

contingencies are listed in the attached resolution. 

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and discuss.  Consider the proposed resolution.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Authorize a Motion to Approve the Resolution to Enter Into a 

Contingent Contract Sale of Approximately 10 Acres in the Northland to Dean Development for a sum of 

$90,000 to Construct a Senior Apartments Tax Credit Project. 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 19



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT 
SALE OF APPROXIMATELY TEN ACRES IN THE 
NORTHALND AREA, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
CONTINGENCIES. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body wishes to promote growth and development on the 
property known as the Northland area; and  

  
WHEREAS, Dean Development is seeking property in the City of Osawatomie to build a 

Senior Apartment project, similar to the Woodland Hills project they built in the west part of the 
City over 10 years ago; and    

 
WHEREAS, The City has offered approximately 10 acres, more or less, in the City of 

Osawatomie’s Northland, located in Section 1, Township 18, Range 22. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS: 
 

SECTION ONE:  The Governing Body authorizes the City to enter into a contingent 
sales contract with Dean Development for the sale of the following property: 

 
Approximately 10.5 acres, more or less, generally located in the western 700 feet of the 

south half of the northwest quarter of the northwest quarter of Section 1, Range 22 East, 
Township 18S, all located south of the tree line and draw located at approximately the northern 
edge of the described area, subject to such adjustments as may become necessary after a legal 
survey is conducted on the property.   

 
SECTION TWO:  The Governing Body authorizes sale of the described property to Dean 

Development for a sum of ninety thousand dollars ($90,000), with the following contingencies 
which must be resolved prior to the final sale of the property: 

(a) that Dean Development receive approval of the tax credit project from the Kansas 
Housing Resources Corporation; and 

(b) that the property is rezoned by the City as a compatible residential zoning for the 
project and area; and  

(c) that reasonably affordable utility services are available for extension to the project’s 
property; and  

(d) an agreement on final property boundaries and a complete legal description. 
 
SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

adoption.  
 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 20



 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Osawatomie, Kansas 
this 12th day of April, 2018, a majority being in favor thereof. 
 
 APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor. 
 
 
 

  ________________________________ 
   L. Mark Govea, Mayor 
  

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Tammy Seamands, City Clerk 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 21



Exhibit A

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 22



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 23



 

2018-04-12 SAM Capacity Sales.docx 

 

 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: Excess Capacity Sales 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   We were approached by KMEA with the opportunity to sell 4 MW of capacity 

beginning June 1, 2019 to May 31, 2020.  The agreement would pay the City $8,000 per month for the 

first four months (summer) and then $2,000 per month for the remaining eight months.  The capacity 

would generate a total of $48,000 over the period, or on average $1,000 per MW per month.  The City 

would still have at least another 6 MW to sell, hopefully locking it up for a longer term.  We anticipate 

those agreements will not be within the pool and would cost the city some money with SWPP to approve 

the transmission. 

We would need to approve the agreement at this meeting because we have a deadline of April 17 for 

approval of the proposal.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and discuss.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Approve a Motion to Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Capacity 

Transaction Confirmation Letter with KMEA to sell 4 MW of Capacity as Proposed. 

 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 24



 

1 
 

CAPACITY TRANSACTION 

CONFIRMATION LETTER 

This confirmation letter (“Confirmation”) shall confirm the Transaction agreed to on April 
 , 2018 (the “Execution Date”) between the City of Osawatomie, Kansas (“City”) and the 
Kansas Municipal Energy Agency (“KMEA”) regarding the sale and purchase of the Product 
under the terms and conditions as follows: 

 
 

Buyer:  KMEA  
 

Seller:  City of Osawatomie, Kansas 
 
Product 
Description: System Capacity.  Contract Quantity is intended to be exclusively available to 

Buyer, equal in priority with other Firm Capacity sales from the Facility.  
 
System 
Capacity: City of Osawatomie Capacity Resources  
 
Contract 
Quantity: 4 MW 
 
   
Governing 
Agreement: Energy Management Project No. 1 between KMEA and the City dated December 

8, 2005, and such terms are incorporated herein and are expressly applicable to 
KMEA and the City. Any inconsistency between this Confirmation and the 
Governing Agreement shall be resolved in favor of this Confirmation.  Terms 
used but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Governing Agreement.   

 
Delivery  
Period:  June 1 2019 to May 31, 2020  
  
Delivery 
Hours:  All hours 
 
Delivery 
Point: SPP Settlement Location “KMEA_EMP1_KCPL”, as established by Southwest 

Power Pool, Inc. or its successor. 
  
Contract  
Price: For each month during the Delivery Period, Buyer shall pay Seller the Monthly 

Capacity Payment Amount. 
 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 25



 

2 
 

The Monthly Capacity Payment Amount shall be calculated as the applicable 
Capacity Price multiplied by the Contract Quantity, as set forth in the table below:  

 
Period Capacity Price 

($/kw/mo) 
Contract 
Quantity 
(MW) 

Capacity 
Payment 
($/mo) 

June 2019 – Sept 2019 2.00 4 8,000 
Oct 2019 – May 2020 0.50 4 2,000 

 
Statements: 

KMEA shall provide a credit on the City’s power supply statements reflecting the 
effects of the Contract Price on City’s monthly charges as set forth above.  

 
City  
Representations  
and Warranties:  

The City represents and warrants that it has sufficient contractual rights to the 
Contract Quantity and associated Energy and Ancillary Services to satisfy its 
obligations herein.  The City has duly authorized the execution of this 
Confirmation. 

 
( Signature page follows )  

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 26



 

3 
 

 
KANSAS MUNICIPAL ENERGY 
AGENCY 

 
 

  
Name: Paul Mahlberg 
Title:  General Manager 

 
 CITY OF OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 
 
 

  
Name: ______________________________ 
Title:  Mayor      

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Name: ____________________________ 
Title:  City Clerk 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 27



 

2018-04-12 SAM Electric Distribution Division Building 

 

 

 
STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

DATE OF MEETING: April 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: New Electric Distribution Division Building 

PRESENTER:  Blake Madden, Director of Public Works and Utilities 

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Construction of a new shop building to house the Electric Distribution Division was 

included in the funding of the Electric Generation Upgrades Project. The City received four proposals in 

response to a Request for Proposals issued by the City on March 20, 2018. In a subsequent addendum, 

the City stated a preference for a standing-seam roof (SSR), however, it was not deemed as a 

requirement. The following table summarizes the costs included in each proposal: 

Proposer 
Roof Construction 

Non-SSR Roof SSR Roof 

CS Cunningham Construction, LLC N/A $248,857.12 

Legacy Contractors, LLC N/A $337,207.00 

Loyd Builders N/A $305,405.00 

Page Enterprise $224,700.00 $239,500.00 

 

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review, discuss, and determine whether to accept a proposal and authorize 

the City to enter into an agreement with selected proposer.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  None.  

 

 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 28



 
 
 

 
City of Osawatomie, Kansas 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Request for Proposals 

 
 

Design and Construct 
Pre-Engineered Steel Building 

Division of Electric Distribution 
Department of Public Works and Utilities 

 
 
 
 

  

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 29



  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 2 of 9 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

DESIGN & CONSTRUCT PRE-ENGINEERED BUILDING 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES 
820 LINCOLN AVENUE, OSAWATOMIE, KANSAS 

 

March 20, 2018 
       
 
PROPOSAL DUE DATE:  2:00 p.m., April 10, 2018 
  City Clerk’s Office 
  Osawatomie City Hall   
  439 Main Street 
  Osawatomie, KS 66064 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
 
The City of Osawatomie, Kansas is seeking a contractor that has the capability to design and construct an 
approximately Seven Thousand, Five Hundred (7,500) square-foot [125 feet (+/- 5 feet) by 60 feet] Pre-
Engineered Steel Building with a nominal eve height of 15 feet. The building will have six drive-thru bays 
with the interior construction completed by the owner.  
 
The building will be built behind (on the north side) of the current building located at 820 Lincoln 
Avenue. The building dimensions may be slightly changed to accommodate manufacturer’s standards, 
with prior written approval from the City.  
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for complete construction including contractor licensing, 
engineering, drawings for permit approval, concrete slab on grade, and building erection. The owner will 
be responsible for performing all site preparation, electrical, mechanical, HVAC, and plumbing work. The 
contractor shall coordinate with the City to ensure successful completion of this work.  
 
The building must conform to Occupancy Category III design criteria per IBC 2006.  
 
The selection of the contractor to provide these services will be made following this process. 
 

a. Pre-Proposal Conference and Site Tour.  An on-site, pre-proposal conference will be held at 
10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, April 3, 2018.  Interested parties should come to the west side of the 
Public Works shop building located at 820 Lincoln Avenue, Osawatomie, Kansas. A site tour of 
the proposed building area will be provided and staff will be available for questions at this time. 

 
b. Request for Proposal (RFP).  Responses must be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office by 2:00 

p.m., April 10, 2018.  
 
The day and time is firm, unless amended in writing from the office of the City Clerk. No exception will 
be accepted.  The Evaluation Committee will conduct a review of all responses in accordance with the 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 30



  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 3 of 9 

evaluation criteria set-forth herein. Based upon these results, the Evaluation Committee will make a 
recommendation for consideration by the City Council. 
 
The City of Osawatomie reserves the right to accept or reject any and all Proposals in whole or in part, to 
waive informalities in the process, to obtain new Proposals, or to postpone the opening should 
circumstances require. Each Proposal shall be valid to the City of Osawatomie for a period of ninety (90) 
days after the opening. 
 
 
INSTRUCTIONS: 
 
Interested firms are to submit a proposal to the City of Osawatomie as required by this RFP. It is the 
intent of City of Osawatomie to award the contract to the firm that clearly demonstrates the ability to 
provide these services to high professional standards.  
 
Three (3) copies of your proposal must be submitted to the City Clerk by 2:00 p.m., April 10, 2018.  
 
All proposals must be submitted to: 
 

Tammy Seamands, City Clerk 
  City of Osawatomie, KS 

439 Main Street, PO Box 37 
Osawatomie, KS  66064 

 
All proposals must be clearly marked on the outside: “ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION BUILDING”. All proposals 
received after the designated time and date of the proposal opening will not be considered. 
 
Proponents are encouraged to review carefully all provisions and attachments of this document prior to 
submission. Each proposal constitutes an offer, which shall remain valid for ninety (90) days and may 
not be withdrawn except as provided herein. 
 
To minimize the cost to the proponent in responding to this solicitation, you are encouraged to be brief 
and succinct, avoiding extravagant covers, bindings and photographs. The City will not be responsible for 
any cost incurred by proponents in responding to this solicitation.  
 
The City of Osawatomie reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, to evaluate proposals, and to 
accept portions of any proposal, and accept any proposal, which in its opinion, may be in the best 
interest of the City.  The City reserves the right to waive any and all formalities.  
 
It is in the City’s interest for proposers to understand the requirements of this RFP as fully as possible. 
Therefore, we have arranged a pre-proposal conference for this procurement.  
 
Technical Questions: Technical questions relating to the RFP may be directed in writing via email to: 
Blake Madden, Director of Public Works and Utilities, bmadden@osawatomieks.org. Questions must be 
submitted no later than 5:00 p.m., Friday, April 6, 2018.  
 
Questions will be forwarded to the appropriate staff members for responses. All responses will be 
submitted by addenda to all interested proponents. Please do not call or contact any other department 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 31

mailto:bmadden@osawatomieks.org


  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 4 of 9 

or the governing body concerning this RFP. Any such contact may void your ability to bid on this 
project. 
 
Errors in Proposals:  Proponents or their authorized representatives are expected to fully inform 
themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and specifications before submitting proposals. Failure 
to do so will be at the Proposer’s own risk. 

 
Contract Period: The term of a contract awarded as a result of this RFP shall be to the completion of the 
building which shall be ready for occupancy by July 20, 2018.  
 
Compliance with Laws:  The Proposer shall obtain and maintain all applicable City contractor’s licenses, 
permits, a minimum of $1,000,000 in liability insurance, worker’s compensation insurance, and shall 
provide a performance bond for the project as required by city financial policies for all capital projects 
over $40,000. There will be no cost for the building permits as the project is proposed by the issuing 
authority. The Proposer will comply with any and all other standards or regulations required by federal 
or state statutes or any ordinances and rules during the performance of any contract between the 
Proposer and the City. Any such requirement specifically set forth in any contract document between 
the Proposer and the City shall be supplementary to this section and not in substitution thereof. 
 
Withdrawal of Proposal: Any proposal may be withdrawn by written request received by the City before 
the time fixed for receipt of proposals. Withdrawal of your proposal will not prejudice the right of the 
proponent to submit a new proposal, providing the latter is timely received as provided herein. 
 
Confidentiality of Documents: Upon receipt of a proposal by the City, the proposal shall become the 
property of the City without compensation to the proponent, for disposition or usage by the City at its 
discretion. The details of the proposal documents will remain confidential to the extent possible until 
final award. 
 
Compensation: The City has attempted to provide as much information about the scope of services as 
possible to enable firms to structure a most productive and cost effective offer. The subsequent contract 
between City of Osawatomie and the winning proposal will define compensation payments based upon 
the amount negotiated and agreements as to terms between City of Osawatomie and the successful 
proposer. The winning proposal will result in a contract between the contractor and the City. There will 
be only one contract with the winning bidder and that winning bidder will be responsible for paying any 
sub-contractors and purchasing materials as outlined in the submitted proposal. 
  
Local Preference Policy: The City of Osawatomie has adopted a purchasing policy which allows 
businesses located within the city limits of Osawatomie who choose to respond to any request for bids 
shall be afforded a 0.5-percent difference from the low proposer. In the event a business located in 
Osawatomie is within 0.5-percent of the low bid, City staff are hereby permitted to purchase from the 
local vendor, provided all things are otherwise equal. Local businesses that are above the lowest bid 
between 0.5-percent and 5-percent shall be afforded the opportunity to adjust their bid to within 0.5-
percent after bids are open and known in order to earn the business, provided everything else is equal. 
 
Rejecting Proposals:  The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and is not bound to accept 
any proposal if that proposal is contrary to the best interest of City of Osawatomie. Similarly, the City is 
not bound to accept the lowest dollar proposal if the offer is not considered in the City’s best interest. 
 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 32



  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 5 of 9 

Conflict of Interest:  All respondents must provide a statement of disclosure, which will allow the City to 
evaluate possible conflicts of interest. No person involved in making procurement decisions may have 
personal investments in any business entity which will create a substantial conflict between their private 
interests and their public duties.  
 
Appeals by Proposers: Appeals from any actual or prospective proposer who feels aggrieved in 
connection with the solicitation or award of a contract may appeal to the City Manager. An appeal shall 
be submitted in writing within 5 working days after the aggrieved person knows or should have known 
of the facts. The City Manager shall promptly issue a written decision regarding any appeal, if it is not 
settled by a mutual agreement. The decision shall state the reasons for the action taken and inform the 
actual or prospective proposer of the right to appeal to the City Council. The City Council shall be the 
final appeal at the city level. 
 
Affirmation: All proposals must clearly state and affirm by signature that the proposer has read the RFP 
document, fully understands the requirements, has familiarized itself as to the conditions of the site, 
and will comply with these requirements, if awarded this work. 
 
Notification: The City will evaluate all the proposals and quickly select the winning proposer for 
approval by the City Council at a subsequent City Council meeting. All proposers will be notified of the 
selected proposer by email within 10 days of the proposal deadline. 
 
PROJECT SCOPE: 
 
The project will include the design and construction of the following: 
 

1. An approximate 7,500 square-foot [125 feet (+/- 5 feet) by 60 feet] pre-engineered steel, clear 
span building, with I-beam construction and an eve height of 15 feet.   

2. 125 feet (+/- 5 feet) by 60 feet, minimum 6-inch thick concrete slab sloped to drain to floor 
drains. Maximum joint spacing is 12 feet with #5 by 30-inch deformed tie bars across all joints. 
Column piers and anchor bolts as required. 

3. 12- cast iron floor drains (coordinate with City for plumbing)  

4. A PBR roof with 3:12 pitch, with bypass girts. 

5. PBR roof panels that meet IBC code requirements and 26 gauge colored sidewall panels. 

6. 6- drive-thru bays with minimum width of 14 feet.   

7. 2- 3070 walk in doors, steel insulated w/ lockset and keys 

8. 2- 3030 thermal, horizontal slider windows 

9. 2- 3’x3’ framed openings at each end of building for ventilation by others  

10. 12- 14-foot high by 12-foot wide 25 gauge steel insulated overhead doors. 

11. Gutters and downspouts 

12. 4-inch insulation, complete building, white reinforced with nylon 

13. Building will conform to Occupancy Category III design criteria per IBC 2006. 

14. KS stamped engineered drawings of building. 

15. KS stamped foundation plan. 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 33



  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 6 of 9 

16. The foundation of the building will be placed atop limestone screenings compacted to 95-
percent maximum dry density. For foundation, footing and slab design, the bearing capacity 
shall be assumed to be 2,500psf.  

 

Bid Alternates 
 

1. Remove and replace siding and roof on existing Public Works shop building.  
2. Remove and replace existing insulation with 4-inch insulation, white reinforced with nylon, on 

existing Public Works shop building. 
3. Remove and replace two doors with 3070 walk-in doors, steel insulated with lockset and keys on 

existing Public Works shop building.  
 

 
  

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 34



  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 7 of 9 

Other Information 
 
The building will be built behind (on the north side) of the current Public Works shop building located at 
820 Lincoln Avenue. The building dimensions may be slightly changed to accommodate manufacturer’s 
standards. No changes will be made without prior written approval from the City.  
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for all aspects of the proposed project, including, but not limited to: 
obtaining required licensing, engineering, drawings for permit approval, concrete slab on grade, sub-
contractors if needed, and building purchase and erection. The owner will perform all site preparation, 
electrical, mechanical, HVAC, and plumbing work.  
 
Be advised that during the term of this work, the selected contractor shall have and maintain adequate 
insurance coverage as stated herein. Furthermore, the selected contractor shall comply with all state 
and federal laws, including the requirement that the contractor provide worker’s compensation benefits 
to its employees. The evidence of insurance or the ability to obtain insurance shall be furnished to the 
City Clerk as outlined in this proposal.  
 
The successful proponent will be responsible for adhering to all applicable safety codes on this project 
and will provide all necessary safety measures to protect City employees, patrons, and the general 
public during the commission of this project.  
 
 
PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Proposal responses shall include the following: 

1. QUALIFICATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 

 Describe the qualifications of your firm; include resumes, licenses, certifications, and 
applicable experience. (Statements of Qualifications of your firm will be evaluated.) 

 Describe the ownership and current principals of your firm. 

 Describe experience with similar projects for local governments specifically, within the past 
five (5) years; and in the State of Kansas. 

 Provide names and experience of the project leaders.  

 Technical capabilities and ability to interface with City staff.  

2. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 Provide at least two (2) financial references. 

 Please provide an explanation if your firm, or any predecessor firm, has ever filed for 
bankruptcy. 

 Please provide an explanation if your firm has ever made or filed an errors and omissions 
claim. 

 

 

 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 35



  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 8 of 9 

3. REFERENCES 

Provide the following information of organizations/governments similar to City of Osawatomie, 
that you have performed similar services within the past five years, in the central United States.   

 Customer name and contact name, address, telephone number and email. 

 Scope of project. 

 Cost of project  

 End result and subsequent disposition.      

4. COST PROPOSAL /FEE  

The City of Osawatomie requires a total cost or fee for this project. A lump sum cost proposal 
to supply all equipment, materials, supplies, labor to complete the project, unless specifically 
noted to not be part of the project.  

The City requests a price breakdown with each proposal to generally follow those enumerated 
items in the project scope, plus any additional charges or items by the contractor. However, the 
bid must be a lump sum cost. In addition, bid alternates should be provided for each of the 
three (3) requested alternates. 

5. CONTRACT PERIOD ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

All proposers must provide written acknowledgement that the term of a contract awarded as a 
result of the RFP shall be to the completion of the building by July 20, 2018.  

6. PROOF OF INSURANCE COVERAGE 

All proposers must demonstrate current coverage or the ability to obtain coverage as described 
below. Evidence of insurance shall be furnished to the City Clerk prior to start of work.  

The firm to conduct these services must carry liability coverage and other insurance, including, 
but not less than, the following: 

 Workers Compensation at statutory limits and Employer’s Liability with a limit of $500,000. 

 Comprehensive General Liability insurance policy, in limits no less than $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for aggregate or property damage, including coverage 
for owner’s or non-owned property or automobile damage, errors and omissions, 
premises-operation, product, and contractual liability coverage part designating the 
assumption of liability under performance of the contract.  

 The successful proposer shall secure and present a certificate of insurance to City Clerk of 
Osawatomie, reflecting these coverages and naming City of Osawatomie as an additional 
insured and all policies shall reflect a 90-day notice of cancellation.  

7. PERFORMANCE BOND 

All proposers must provide in its proposal proof of the ability to obtain a performance bond for 
the amount that of work bid for this project. Upon selection, the successful proposer shall 
secure and present such bond information to the City Clerk of Osawatomie, reflecting the bond 
amount specific to this project. The City of Osawatomie financial policies require a performance 
bond to be purchased for the entire amount of the project for all projects over $40,000.  

 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 36



  

2018-03-20 RFP for Electric Division Building  Page 9 of 9 

8. CONTACT INFORMATION  

All proposals must include the following contact and authorization information: 

 Company Name 

 Mailing Address 

 Street Address 

 Office and Cell Phone 

 Fax Number 

 Email Address 

 Authorized Signee and Title 

 Printed Name and Title 

 Signature of Authorized Signee and Date Affirming the Proposal 

 

 
 

END OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 37



RFP for Design and Construct Pre-Engineered Building 
 

RFP ADDENDUM #1 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

RFP ADDENDUM #1 
Date of Addendum: April 9, 2018  

 
 

NOTICE TO ALL POTENTIAL RESPONDENTS 

The Request for Proposals (RFP) is modified as set forth in this Addendum. The original RFP Documents 
and any previously issued addenda remain in full force and effect, except as modified by this Addendum, 
which is hereby made part of the RFP. Respondent shall take this Addendum into consideration when 
preparing and submitting its Proposal.  

 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL DEADLINE 

 
The Proposal submittal deadline remains the same and is not changed by this Addendum.  
 

1.0 – RFP  

N/A 

   

   

   

   

2.0 – QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

The following questions and answers are provided as a matter of information to clarify issues raised 
about the RFP. To the extent that changes to the RFP are required based on the questions received, the 
RFP has been modified as noted above in the RFP section of this Addendum.   

Item Questions and Answers 

2.1 Question: Is this project tax exempt? 
 
Answer: Materials will not be tax exempt, labor will be. 
 
Question: Will the City have a Builder's Risk insurance policy in place or do we have to provide? 
 
Answer: The City will provide the Builder’s Risk policy. 
 
Question: Item #6 on project scope requires drive thru bay width of 14' while item #10 asks for 
12' wide doors. Does #6 refer to the door width or clear space between building columns? 
 
Answer: The distance from the center of one bay to the center of the adjacent bay shall be a 
minimum distance of 14 feet.  
 
Question: Are we to provide any windows in man doors or garage doors? 
 
Answer: Neither will have windows.  

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 38



RFP for Design and Construct Pre-Engineered Building 
 

RFP ADDENDUM #1 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
Question: Do you want openers for garage doors? Or chain pulley openers? If openers are 
requested, do you want push button controllers for trucks? 
 
Answer: Yes, the overhead doors will need openers and remotes.  
 
Question: I'm not sure what you want with Item #3 cast iron floor drains if the City crew is doing 
the plumbing.  Are you wanting a sloped trench drain system? Or large boxes with CI grating? 
 
Answer: The floor drains will be trench drains covered with grating. The proposer may include 
details and costs of such system but it will not be required in the proposal selection process.  
 
Question: If possible, I would suggest a SSR or standing seam roof panel instead of the screw-
down roof panel. Would cost a bit more, but extremely fewer penetrations. Also, do you need a 
3:12 pitch, SSR can go down to a 1:12 pitch or even less. Lower pitch would be less expensive. 
 
Answer: It is the desire of the City to have an SSR roof with a 3:12 pitch.  
 
Question: Will HVAC, Electricians, and plumber provide their own flashings for any of their roof 
or wall penetrations? ie, plumbing vents, exhaust fans or intakes thru the roof, etc. 
 
Answer: Yes.  
 
Question: Are we responsible for any designs for interior work by others? 
 
Answer: No. 
 
Question: Is there any exterior concrete work to be done by us? Like stoops, drives, aprons, 
walks, condenser pads, etc. 
 
 
Answer: All exterior concrete work will be performed by the City.  
 
Question: Will you require us to get independent testing of concrete? Or independent special 
inspector for PEMB? 
 
Answer: No.  
 
Question: Item #16 says the foundation will be placed atop a building pad of screenings, do you 
mean the slab will be atop the screenings and the foundation dug into the screenings? Or 
actually form foundations on the pad and bring in fill for the slab? 
 
Answer: Screenings will be placed up to the bottom of slab elevation. All foundations will be 
excavated.  
 
Question: If foundation is to be dug into screenings pad, do we leave offal on site or are we 
responsible for hauling offal off-site? 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 39



RFP for Design and Construct Pre-Engineered Building 
 

RFP ADDENDUM #1 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 
Answer: All offal may be left on site.  
 
Question: When will the pad be ready for concrete sub? 
 
Answer: The pad will be ready by May 21, 2018. 
 
Question: What will be the turnaround time for shop drawing approval by the City? Lead time on 
pre-engineered buildings is pushing 8 weeks these days. Building is to be completed by July 20, 
2018 – Correct? 
 
Answer: Shop drawings will be approved on or before April 20, 2018. It is the desire of the City to 
have the Contractor’s portion of the building completed by July 20. If a Contractor is unable to 
complete the work by this date, please explain why and provide an anticipated timeline.  
 
Question: Liquidated damages? 
 
Answer: Liquidated damages will be agreed upon in the contract negotiations.  
 
Question: Any vision panels in OH doors or walk in doors? 
 
Answer: Neither will have windows. 
 
Question: Hardware - Keyways to match existing building? If yes, manufacturer. 
 
Answer: All keyways shall be identical. There is not a preference on the manufacturer.  
 

 

 

3.0 – INFORMATION 

The following item(s) are provided as a matter of information only to all respondents and do not modify 
or become part of the Contract Documents.  

Item Description 

3.1 N/A 

 
 

END OF ADDENDUM 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 40



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 41



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 42



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 43



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 44



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 45



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 46



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 47



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 48



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 49



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 50



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 51



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 52



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 53



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 54



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 55



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 56



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 57



2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 58



 

2018-04-12 SAM Parker Ave between 8th and JBMP 

 

 

 
STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

DATE OF MEETING: April 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: DPWU Proposal for Street Improvements for Parker Avenue between 8th 
Street and the East Entrance to John Brown Memorial Park  

PRESENTER:  Blake Madden, Director of Public Works and Utilities 

ISSUE SUMMARY:    Parker Avenue is receiving an increase in traffic as a result of the Main Street 

Improvements Project. This increase is causing severe pavement deterioration on Parker Avenue 

between 8th Street and the east entrance into John Brown Memorial Park.  

This year’s CIP allocates $55,000 to unassigned street replacement / chip and seal. The Public Works 

Department requests that this money be applied to improving this stretch of roadway. The department 

proposes removal of the existing chip and seal pavement and excavation of earth 13 inches below the 

pavement surface. The excavation will be filled with rock (KDOT AB-3 gradation) up to the current 

pavement surface elevation. Traffic will be detoured on Lincoln Avenue and the alley along the east side 

of the park. Once the Main Street project is completed, the City will remove the top 7 inches of rock and 

contract for the placement of a 7-inch thick asphalt pavement or self-perform placement of a 6-inch 

thick concrete pavement. The remaining 6 inches of rock will serve as the base of the pavement. The 

total cost for rock and pavement, including a 10-percent contingency, is $56,000. The 7 inches of rock 

that would be removed would be salvaged and reused resulting in a true project cost of $48,000.  

The existing curb and gutter along Parker Avenue between 9th Street and the park entrance would 

remain in place. If additional funding can be identified, curb and gutter could be installed between 8th 

and 9th streets. The estimated cost for this new curb and gutter with contingency is $21,000.  

Project cost options: 
Replace pavement only, $48,000 
Replace pavement and add curb and gutter between 8th and 9th streets, $69,000 

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Determine whether to authorize the Public Works Department to proceed 

with the proposed project, and if so, whether to include curb and gutter between 8th and 9th streets.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Authorize the Public Works Department to proceed with the 

project.  

 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 59



 

2018-04-12 SAM East Lake Road.docx 

 

 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: East Lake Road 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   For 2016 and 2017 we underspent our unassigned chip seal set-aside for those 

budgets.  During the CIP process we talked about chip-sealing the east lake road as a project for 2018, 

to go along with lake improvements and to control dust issues.   

Blake talked to the County about an estimate for the project.  Attached are those estimates.  In total, 

they estimate it would cost $54,000 to chip seal the east lake road.  This is about $10,000 higher than 

the bid for the west lake road, but materials and oil costs have increased since 2015.  The actual cost of 

the West Lake road was $36,500.   

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and discuss.  If we are going to complete this before Lights on the 

Lake, a decision will need to be made right away.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Authorize the City Manager to have the County begin 

preparations to chip-seal the East Lake Road. 

 

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 60



Road Rock Cost Ana!ysis Wo「ksheet

IMATERIALIMATERiALi 
RoadwayWidth �RoadLength �Depth �Mate「jalCost 

(feet) �(feet) �Inches �(Pe「tOn) 

i　Miies　i 

i　　　　　20I　　　4500i　　　　61$16・85l　　　　Oi 

Sq. Yards Tons of Mat. Cost of Mat.

初子修三寸偽J取に

匝童画
丁ota! Cost

(Per Miie)

堂塑国連堕壁星

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 61



二
〇
十
〇
〕
S
○
○

8
.
課
調
-
∞
∽

よ
∴
寺
べ
き
ぶ
ミ

二
〇
十
〇
.
一
e
O

」
①
>
〇
〇
十
〇
〕
S
○
○

①
>
〇
〇
十
〇
S
u
〇
十

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 62



)
{
0

、
d
重
工
寸
斡
-

間
田
園
圏

)
$
雪
や
ヾ
千
載
¥
†
武
∵
玉
U
「
吉
良
十

…
善
く
号
・
三
、
等
)
ヾ
当

二
〇
土
0
〕
S
○
○

二
〇
十
〇
二
e
①

」
①
>
○
○
」
〇
着
S
○
○

①
>
〇
〇
十
〇
S
⊂
〇
十

‖
』
上
聞
甲
胤
昌
一

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 63



 

2018-04-12 SAM Sales Tax Ballot Language.docx 

 

 

 

STAFF AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 

DATE OF MEETING: April 12, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: Sales Tax Ballot Question 

PRESENTER:  Don Cawby, City Manager 

ISSUE SUMMARY:   In March, the council directed me to move forward with a ballot question to pass a 

quarter-cent (0.25) sales tax which would be used for public safety equipment and public safety and 

municipal court software.  Should the ballot initiative not pass, the City would be required to increase 

the budget by approximately 4.0 mills to pay off the debt on the lease-purchase for the fire truck.  

Attached is a copy of the financing breakdown approved at the March meeting.   

Staff suggests the following language for the ballot: 

Shall the following be adopted?  
 
Shall the city of Osawatomie, Kansas levy a retailers’ sales tax in the amount of one quarter of one percent 
(.25%), to take effect on January 1, 2019, and to be levied for eight years until December 31, 2026, on retail 
sales consummated within the city of Osawatomie, with revenues of such tax to be used to help finance the 
purchase and installation of equipment for the City’s fire and police operations, and the purchase and 
installation of any new, replacement or updated computer software for the City’s fire, police and municipal 
court operations, and any such related computer hardware for the operation thereof, and to pay obligations 
of the City issued to finance purchases for these same purposes, all in accordance with the provisions of 
K.S.A. 12-187 et seq., and amendments thereto? 
 

This question would assume only an 8-year tax and not the maximum 10-year term.  It also clarifies that 

it can be used to pay obligations of a financed purchase.  Otherwise, I believe it addresses the intent of 

the Council. 

COUNCIL ACTION NEEDED:  Review and discuss.  Provide direction to staff.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  No decision needs to be made tonight.  It appears that the 

City would need to pass the language in a formal format to submit to the County Clerk to be added on 

the primary ballot in early August.   

  

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 64



FINANCING SCENARIO FOR LEASE-PURCHASES

with GKB Estimates

Enterprise Software Issuance

Total City Hall/PW Police Court Costs

Principal 233,196$       106,344$         89,246$         33,967$          6,139$        

Years 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5

Est. Rate 3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 3.10% 3.10%

Excess Proceeds 23,152 23,152

Payment Annual $65,038.37 30,129.51        25,285.29     9,623.57         

Avg. Principal 58,299.00      27,007.45        22,665.19     8,626.36         

Avg. Interest 6,739.37        3,122.06          2,620.10        997.21             

Bill Fee/Court Cost 1.50$                1.50$               

Bills/Cases 21,600              800                  

New Fee Revenue 33,600.00$    32,400.00$      1,200.00$       

New Sales Tax 33,708.86      -                    25,285.29     8,423.57         -               

Total 67,308.86$    32,400.00$      25,285.29$   9,623.57$       -$             

Above/Below 2,270.49$     2,270.49$       -$              -$                

Fire Truck

Issuance Costs Payment

Principal 270,000.00$ 7,107.76$        Annual $39,965.08

Years 8.5 Avg. Principal 34,638.47       

Rate 3.10% Avg. Interest 5,326.61         

Sales Tax Proposal

0.25%    For Public Safety/Court Equipment & Technology

Current Rate 9.00%

New Rate 9.25%

Tax Base 30,000,000$    

New Tax Generated 75,000$           

Annual Fund Uses 2019-2023 2024-2026 2027-2028

Truck 39,965.08$      39,965.08$   -$                 

Software 34,908.86        -                 -                   

More $ for PD Cars -                    20,000.00     -                   

Capital Equipment 126.06              15,034.92     35,000.00       

Reduce GF Transfer (opt) -                    -                 40,000.00       

  Total 75,000.00$      75,000.00$   75,000.00$     

3.75 Mill Levy Increase

   Property Tax Option

2018-04-12 Agenda Packet v2 65




